
 
 
 

 
 
 

         21 June 2013 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 1 July 2013 
beginning at 

 
6:00 pm 

In the 
Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillor Anne Winstanley (Chair), Councillor Daniel Clarke (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Mrs Cathie Fraser Councillor Keith House 
Councillor Wayne Irish Councillor Godfrey G Olson 
Councillor Derek R Pretty Councillor Steve Sollitt 
Councillor Mrs Jane Welsh  

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel:  023 8068 8112; 

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

  
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 2)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 February 2013.  
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.  

  
4. Standards Complaints - Annual Review    (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
5. Disclosure and Barring Procedure    (Pages 7 - 10) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING (NEW!) 
Monday, 16 September 2013 at 6:00 pm 

in the Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh 
Road, Eastleigh 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 



 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 11 February 2013  (6:00 pm – 6:10 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Winstanley (Chair); Councillors Clarke, Mrs Fraser, Irish, Olson, 
Pretty and Mrs Welsh 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors House and Sollitt 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2012 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 
On matters arising, Minute 3 – Consultation on the Revised Proposals to 
Suggested Revisions of Parliamentary Constituency Boundaries – the 
Chair reported that a letter had been received from the Boundary 
Commission for England advising that the date of the next Parliamentary 
constituency boundary review had been postponed until 2018. As 
requested, their thanks would be passed to the parish and town councils. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

3. PROPOSED COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - WEST END 
PARISH WARDS 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services which advised that a request had been received from 
West End Parish Council to conduct a community governance review, with 
an aim of reducing the size / increasing the number of wards within West 
End Parish Council. 
 
Councillor Clarke reported that the proposals had been unanimously 
supported by the parish council who felt the arrangement would give 
greater transparency. Residents would be able get to know their 
councillors and the councillors in return would have more engagement with 
residents and issues in the area. 
 
RESOLVED –  

Agenda Item 1

1



 

 

 
That a community governance review be undertaken in respect of the 
warding arrangements at West End Parish Council. 
 

4. AMENDMENT TO THREE YEAR LICENCE POLICY 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services which sought members’ approval to amend the policy 
agreed on 9 February 2010 so that new private hire and hackney carriage 
applicants had the opportunity to apply for a one year or three year licence 
on initial application. 
 
The Trade had requested this amendment at the Licensed Transport 
Forum on 22 January 2013.  This would mean that the Disclosure and 
Barring Service (formally known as Criminal Records Bureau) check, and 
the DVLA driving licence check would be synchronised. Previously new 
applicants who had been issued a one year licence had to apply for a new 
Disclosure and Barring Service check and a DVLA check on their next 
application if they wished to apply for a three year licence. This had 
involved an additional fee of £49.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That new private hire and hackney carriage applicants be invited to 
apply for a one year or three year licence on initial application. 
 
M4858 
 
 

2



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

1 July 2013 

STANDARDS COMPLAINTS – ANNUAL REVIEW 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services  
 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Administration Committee note the report and make any 
recommendations to the Monitoring Officer.  
 

Summary 
 
In July 2012 the Council adopted a new Code of Conduct and processes for dealing with 
standards matters as required by the Localism Act 2011. This included delegating the 
power to investigate complaints that a Member has breached the Code of Conduct to the 
Monitoring Officer. As part of this delegation it was agreed that the Monitoring Officer 
report to the Administration Committee annually on complaints received and actions taken. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 28 Localism Act 2011 
Section 9E Local Government Act 2000 
 

Introduction 

1. The Localism Act 2011 required local authorities to adopt new Codes of 
Conduct for governing the behaviour of Members and new procedures for 
dealing with complaints that Members have breached this Code of Conduct. 
The Council adopted a new Code of Conduct on 26 July 2012 and set out a 
procedure for dealing with complaints.  

2. The investigation of complaints was delegated to the Monitoring Officer, with 
the ability to refer to a sub committee of the Administration Committee if 
appropriate. It was agreed that for monitoring purposes the Monitoring Officer 
should report annually to the Administration Committee on the complaints 
received and the action taken.  

3. Each parish and town council in the Borough is responsible for adopting its 
own Code of Conduct but any complaints relating to these codes are reported 
to the Monitoring Officer at the Borough Council and he is responsible for 
investigating these complaints.  

Agenda Item 4

3



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

2012/13 Overview 

4. The new standards regime came into effect in July 2012 and since that time 
the Monitoring Officer and his team have been working to implement the 
changes required by the Localism Act. Training has been provided for both 
borough and parish members. As this is still new legislation it has been 
necessary to monitor various interpretations of the Act and to provide advice 
to Members on the practical use of the new rules. There has been 
communication with many of the parish/town clerks to provide advice where 
possible and to collate all registers of interests which Members will recall now 
need to be displayed on the parish/town council’s website and the Borough 
Council’s website.    

5. In the last year the Monitoring Officer has received two complaints: 

- A complaint from a parish councillor about the behaviour of another parish 
councillor and a borough councillor. The Monitoring Officer considered the 
complaint, and after consulting with one of the Independent Persons, it 
was decided not to investigate the complaint as it was not felt that there 
had been a breach of the Code of Conduct; 

- A complaint from a member of the public about correspondence with a 
borough councillor. This complaint was received recently and is on-going. 

Independent Persons 

6. It is worth noting that it is intended that there will be a report to Council on 25 
July 2013 on the appointment of the Council’s Independent Persons. 
Members will recall that Dave Bevis was appointed as the Council’s lead 
Independent Person but that the legislation restricted his appointment until 30 
June 2013. Members may wish to thank Mr Bevis for his involvement and 
contribution since his appointment under the previous standards 
arrangements in May 2010.  

Financial Implications 

7.  There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Risk Assessment 

8. There are no risks associated with this report.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

9. There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report.  
 
Conclusion 

10. This report updates the Members on the complaints received that a Member 
has breached the Code of Conduct since the new regime came into place in 
July 2012.  

4



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

RICHARD WARD 
HEAD OF LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
Date: 3 June 2013 
Contact Officer: Alison Ball 
Tel No: 023 8068 8111 
e-mail: alison.ball@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None. 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

ADMINISTRATION COMMITEE 

1 July 2013 

DISCLOSURE AND BARRING PROCEDURE  

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Administration Committee amend the procedure for 
licensing drivers in relation to the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks:  

1)  New applicants must produce a copy of their DBS certificate before their 
application is considered; and 

2) Existing drivers not subscribed to the DBS Certificate Update must produce a 
copy of their certificate to the Licensing Team within 7 days of receipt.  
Failure to do so will result in the Licence being suspended until such time as 
a satisfactory certificate is produced.   

 

Summary 
 
From 17 June 2013, following changes to the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS – 
formally the CRB) procedure, the Council will no longer receive a copy of the DBS 
certificate – only applicants will receive a copy.  Therefore it is recommended that all 
existing drivers be required to produce their DBS Certificate to the Licensing department 
within 7 days of receipt, unless they have subscribed to the DBS certificate update service.  
Failure to do so will result in the licence being suspended until such time as the driver 
produces a satisfactory DBS certificate to the Licensing Team.   

All new applicants will be required to produce their DBS Certificate to the Licensing Team 
before their application will be considered, unless they have subscribed to the DBS 
certificate update service.   

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

 

Introduction 

1. All new Hackney Carriage and Private Hire applicants are required to 
complete a Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) application form which is 
counter-signed by a member of the Licensing Team.  All existing drivers are 
required to complete this application form every 3 years.  A DBS certificate 
was  issued to the driver and the Licensing Team, showing any Cautions, 

Agenda Item 5

7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Reprimands, Warnings, Convictions, or additional information from the Chief 
of Police.  From 17 June 2013 the Licensing Team will no longer receive a 
copy of this certificate and therefore the applicant will be required to show 
their copy to the Licensing Team.   

Background 

2. The change to the DBS process is part of the Government's aim to put the 
individual in greater control of their own data. Individuals will now be able to 
challenge the information the DBS release, before it is seen by their current or 
prospective employer. 

3. In addition, the DBS are creating the DBS Update Service in which applicants 
can pay an annual subscription of £13 to keep their DBS certificate up to date 
and take it with them from role to role, within the same workforce, where the 
same type and level of check is required.  This allows the registered body to 
carry out a status check after viewing an original DBS certificate carried out by 
another authority. The applicant will have to provide permission to the 
registered body to do a status check.  The Registered Body can electronically 
check details and confirm a legal declaration which the Licensing Team can 
printout. The exception to this is if the DBS prompts the Registered Body to 
undertake another DBS check which would suggest that the applicant has 
further cautions or convictions, in which case the Registered Body would 
require the applicant to undertake a new DBS check.  There is no cost to the 
Council to access the update service.   

4. Drivers will be encouraged to subscribe to the certificate update service as it 
will be cost effective in the long term.  Applicants will have to apply for the 
update service at the same time as completing their next DBS check.  The  
applicants are under no obligation to sign up to this service, however,  if they 
decline then the Licensing Team will be required to undertake a DBS check in 
the usual way.  The certificate update service is only available on-line and 
some drivers who do not have internet access will be restricted from 
subscribing.   

5. New applicants will not be issued with a licence until a satisfactory DBS 
certificate is received. The applicants must present their disclosure before 
their application to become a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver is 
considered. 

6. With regards to existing drivers that are already licensed, the date of renewal 
of their licence does not always coincide with the date that their DBS check is 
required.  Therefore they will be required to produce their copy to the 
Licensing Department within 7 days of receipt and failure to do so will result in 
their licence being immediately suspended.   

7. If drivers do not produce a copy of their DBS certificate, the Licensing Team 
will be entitled to request a copy if it was issued more than 28 days ago.  The 
exception to this is if the applicant disputes the information on the certificate. 
The DBS in this instance will not consider issuing a certificate until 28 days 
after the dispute is resolved.   

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

8. If drivers come to renew their hackney carriage or private hire drivers licence 
and they have not produced their DBS certificate, their licence will not be 
renewed until they produce a satisfactory DBS certificate to the Licensing 
Department.     

Financial Implications 

9. There will be no financial implications associated with this report     

Risk Assessment 

10. There will be no risks arising from these changes.  The policy will be following 
the Disclosure and Barring Service Guidance.   

Equality and Diversity Implications 

11. These procedures apply to all drivers and applicants so there will be no 
equality and diversity implications.   

Conclusion 

12. In conclusion, it is proposed that this Committee approves the amendments to 
procedures in relation to the DBS certificate checks for licensing drivers. .   

 

RICHARD WARD  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services  

 
 

Date: 18 June 2013 
Contact Officer: Jennifer Dunn  
Tel No: 023 80688109 
e-mail: Jennifer.dunn@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: none 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

List Background Papers  
 
Disclosure and barring Service Update Service Employer Guide May 2013 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Standards Complaints - Annual Review
	5 Disclosure and Barring Procedure

